
Page 1 of 9 
 

CITY OF SAN RAMON 
PARKS AND COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMISSION MEETING 1 

 2 
December 14, 2011 3 

Regular Meeting 4 
 5 

Approved Minutes January 11, 2012 6 
 7 
 8 

1.         CALL TO ORDER 9 
 10 
The Parks and Community Services Commission Meeting was called to order by  11 
Chair Ernest at 7:00 p.m. The meeting was held in the City Council Chambers located  12 
at 2222 Camino Ramon, San Ramon, CA.  13 
 14 
 15 
2.         PLEDGE OF ALLEGIENCE 16 
 17 
 18 
3.         ROLL CALL 19 
 20 
Present: 21 
 22 
Chair Ernest, Commissioner Berner, Commissioner Lopez, Commissioner Meine 23 
Commissioner Mills, and Student Commissioner Mehra, Commissioner Kenniston-Lee (was 24 
sworn in after roll call) 25 
 26 
Absent: 27 
 28 
Commissioner Yancey  29 
 30 
Staff Present:   31 
 32 
Director Karen McNamara, Police Chief Scott Holder, Division Managers Jeff Gault and 33 
Esther Lucas, City Clerk Patricia Edwards, Program Manager Teri Mountford, Senior 34 
Administrative Analyst Julie Vargas, and Commission Secretary Cristi Toman 35 
 36 
 37 
4.         SPECIAL ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 38 
 39 
  4.1             Special Announcements 40 
 41 
Ms. McNamara stated that the City offices and facilities will be closed for the furlough 42 
period, Friday, December 23rd and reopening on Tuesday, January 3rd. Ms. McNamara 43 
stated the Public Services Department will have an Emergency Response Plan in place for 44 
the public to access City services if there are storm events or other crisis which might 45 



Page 2 of 9 
 

occur. 46 
 47 
 48 

4.2            Swearing in of New Commissioner 49 
 50 

City Clerk Ms. Edwards administered the Oath of Office to Heidi Kenniston-Lee to serve on 51 
the Parks and Community Services Commission as a Commissioner.  52 
 53 
 54 

4.3             Temporary Employees of the Month – November – Mary Lau,  55 
      Angie Roncagliolo, and Anda Szuch 56 

 57 
Teri Mountford introduced Mary Lau, Angie Roncagliolo, and Anda Szuch who she fondly 58 
calls the ‘Lunch Ladies’. Ms. Mountford stated that these three ladies share the 59 
responsibility of overseeing the daily lunch program at the Senior Center. All three began 60 
their relationship with the Center as volunteers and were recruited to work as temporary 61 
employees in the kitchen when our long time staff kitchen employee retired. They have 62 
been instrumental in increasing the number of diners each day. She stated that several 63 
years ago the center was averaging 15 to 20 people per day and now are averaging 30 or 64 
more per day due largely to their enthusiasm, dedication, concern and caring they exhibit 65 
on a daily basis. They always make sure that each lunch attendee feels welcome and has an 66 
enjoyable dining experience. The City of San Ramon Parks and Community Services 67 
Department thanked Mary, Angie and Anda for their efforts in providing excellent service 68 
and their commitment to the Senior Services Division and seniors of San Ramon.  69 
 70 
 71 
5.         PUBLIC COMMENT OR WRITTEN COMMUNICATION 72 
 73 
None 74 
 75 
 76 
6.         APPROVED MINUTES 77 
 78 
  6.1              Minutes of November 09, 2011 – Regular Meeting 79 
 80 
Commissioner Berner’s motion to accept the minutes of November 09, 2011 – Regular  81 
Meeting with no changes was seconded by Commissioner Mills and passed 5 – 0.  Student 82 
Commissioner Mehra voted in favor of the motion. Commissioner Yancey was absent.  83 
 84 
 85 
7.         CONSENT CALENDAR 86 
 87 
None 88 
 89 
 90 
8.         COMMISSION BUSINESS 91 



Page 3 of 9 
 

 92 
  8.1 Report by the Harlan House Preservation Study Group and   93 
             Confirmation of San Catanio Creek Park Site for Harlan/El Nido House 94 
Ms. McNamara summarized the staff report and recommended the Parks and Community 95 
Services Commission review and approve the location of San Catanio Creek Park Site for 96 
the relocation of the Harlan/El Nido House from its present site.  97 
 98 
Ms. McNamara introduced William Harlan, Harlan National Family Association, who gave a 99 
PowerPoint presentation reviewing the possible locations for the house that were studied 100 
and evaluated by the working group: San Catanio Creek park site/Wood lot; Forest Home 101 
Farms; Memorial Park; Crow Canyon Gardens; Starkweather property; Faria Park Site; 102 
Rancho Community Park; Onsite at current location; Other Gelderman Site.  103 
 104 
Commission had no questions at this time.  105 
 106 
Commissioner Lopez moved to support the findings of the preservation study group and 107 
approve the location of the San Catanio Creek Park be the site of the relocation of the 108 
Harlan/El Nido House from its present site; Commissioner Mills seconded the motion.  109 
 110 
Chair Ernest opened forum for further discussion.   111 
 112 
Commissioner Berner asked how the relocation is going to be funded. Ms. McNamara 113 
responded that there are multiple steps that remain in the process and after approving the 114 
site, funding needs and sources could be researched. Staff is continuing the negotiations 115 
with the developer. Ms. McNamara stated that she does not have the full answer regarding 116 
funding at this time.  117 
 118 
The Commission moved to accept the motion; Student Commissioner Mehra voted in favor 119 
which passed 6 – 0. Commissioner Yancey was absent.  120 
 121 
 122 

8.2 Review and Discussion of Recommendations on July 4th Event 123 
 124 
Ms. McNamara summarized the staff report and recommended the Parks and Community 125 
Services Commission review and discuss July 4th Event Alternatives. Ms. McNamara stated 126 
that she would combine the recommendations and suggestions from the commission in a 127 
final version of the report.  A subcommittee review could be made in January to determine 128 
either a ramping up or ramping down of the event for 2012.  129 
 130 
Chair Ernest opened the forum for discussion.  131 
 132 
Commissioner Kenniston-Lee stated if we recognize that this is a regional event, with fewer 133 
San Ramon residents than non-residents participating and if the City is committed to the 134 
event then we need to provide the resources to make it a safe event. Commissioner 135 
Kenniston-Lee was intrigued to possibly moving the event to a different day and having it 136 
have a ‘Celebrate San Ramon’ focus with the goal to bring it back to the residents. 137 



Page 4 of 9 
 

Commissioner Kenniston-Lee favored the idea to make it a joint effort at the fairgrounds; 138 
something that local municipalities bond together to provide resources and make sure it is 139 
a safe event.  140 
 141 
Commissioner Berner mentioned that the Alameda Fairgrounds already cancelled their 4th 142 
of July event and does not think it will work. Commissioner Berner expressed concern that 143 
limiting ground fireworks to one or both of the stadiums risks dividing San Ramon. 144 
Commissioner Berner prefers a ground fireworks display at Central Park, but believes that 145 
the same amount of people will show up. Commissioner Berner stated that the City should 146 
postpone this year’s event.  147 
 148 
Commissioner Meine feels that the City should reduce the event to make it a City program 149 
and not an area program. Commissioner Meine stated that an advisory committee should 150 
be formed with the adjoining cities to look at putting on the event in an adequate space 151 
somewhere in the Tri Valley.  152 
 153 
Commissioner Lopez requested to hear the Chief of Police, Scott Holder’s opinion on the 154 
event.  Mr. Holder stated that the event has out grown Central Park with more than 30,000 155 
in attendance last year. Mr. Holder also stated that Central Park was not made to hold 156 
30,000 plus people safely. Mr. Holder expressed the biggest concern of the event is the 157 
amount of foot traffic in and out of the park and into surrounding traffic in the dark. Mr. 158 
Holder stated that when the fireworks start all police officers must leave Central Park to go 159 
to their designated location for traffic control, leaving the park unattended.  160 
 161 
Commissioner Mills stated that his concern is to alleviate the financial burden that the 162 
event has on the City. Commissioner Mills believes that the City needs to get away from the 163 
fireworks that are potentially leading to the issues that the Chief described. Commissioner 164 
Mills recommended having an event during the day with a community feel with food 165 
booths, similar to the Summer Concert Series in the Park with a band that could play 166 
patriotic music.  167 
 168 
Commissioner Berner believes that there should be ground fireworks. Ms. Berner 169 
expressed concern that by not having a fireworks display could lead to people purchasing 170 
their own and setting them off in San Ramon. Commissioner Berner stated that by 171 
postponing the event for a year could bring it back to what it was.  172 
 173 
Commissioner Lopez asked Commissioner Berner if she is suggesting if the event should be 174 
cancelled for a year. Commissioner Berner responded that she is not sure how else to 175 
return the event to a more local event.  Commissioner Lopez agreed with Commissioner 176 
Mills and believed the event should go back to being a smaller event. Commissioner Lopez 177 
expressed concern if the event is to continue the way it is, and questioned where the 178 
additional funding would come from if staff is taking furloughs. Commissioner Lopez stated 179 
that the question is how to advertise that it is a smaller event. Commissioner Lopez also 180 
stated that she does not attend the event because there are too many people.  181 
 182 
Chair Ernest stated that regardless of fireworks in the air or on the ground, the Police will 183 



Page 5 of 9 
 

still have the same issues with the same amount of people. Chair Ernest stated that he is not 184 
in favor of the fireworks. Chair Ernest stated that San Ramon is a lot of things to a lot of 185 
people, but we cannot be all things to all people. Chair Ernest stated the City does not have 186 
any obligation to be the only city in the valley providing fireworks. Chair Ernest stated to 187 
have a manageable daytime event with booths, entertainment and a concert in the park 188 
wrapping up at four or five would redirect it back to its original purpose. Chair Ernest 189 
asked Mr. Holder if such event would put strain on the police. Mr. Holder stated that it 190 
would not put strain on the police department as well as the other departments. Chair 191 
Ernest expressed concern about the recovery time of Central Park and the damage that is a 192 
result of the event.  193 
 194 
Commissioner Meine referred to item 35 of the staff report and stated that the emphasis 195 
should be put on the morning run with entertainment and barbeques in the park in the 196 
afternoon. Commissioner Meine stated we need to create more activity around the run.  197 
 198 
Chair Ernest stated that we need to de-emphasis the regional nature of the fireworks in the 199 
evening and redirect to back to a city event based around the run.  200 
 201 
Commissioner Lopez asked if people could legally bring barbeques into the park. Mr. 202 
Holder stated that alcohol or barbeques are prohibited in the park. Commissioner Lopez 203 
stated that since barbeques are prohibited in the park, food booths would need to be 204 
brought in for the day. Commissioner Berner stated that there are limited barbecues in the 205 
park and asked if the City would be willing to borrow the large barbeques placed on 206 
asphalt with an individual monitoring the grill to deter people from bringing their own 207 
barbeque.  208 
 209 
Commissioner Berner suggested historic games of our childhood to be family oriented and 210 
not just for children.  211 
 212 
Commissioner Kenniston-Lee suggested a multi-cultural focus for the event that celebrates 213 
the diverse community. Commissioner Kenniston-Lee stated she would like to explore 214 
another day to celebrate San Ramon or civic pride.  215 
 216 
Commissioner Meine stated that the event should be cancelled for one year and reorganize 217 
the event for the following year on a smaller scale, but to continue to have the race. 218 
 219 
Student Commissioner Mehra stated that the focus should be placed on the race, which 220 
would not be cancelling the event all together, but is highlighting something that has been 221 
going on for a long time. Student Commissioner Mehra stated that after the race there 222 
should be refreshments and a celebration that would end at noon.  223 
 224 
Ms. McNamara stated that bringing in the large barbeques is feasible. Ms. McNamara stated 225 
that regardless of what the City does or does not do, Central Park is a beautiful park and 226 
will attract thousands of people for the day in honor of a national holiday.  227 
 228 
Commissioner Meine motioned for the July 4th event to be cancelled for one year, but to 229 



Page 6 of 9 
 

continue to hold the race; Commissioner Lopez seconded the motion. Student 230 
Commissioner Mehra voted in favor which passed 6 – 0. Commissioner Yancey was absent. 231 
 232 
Ms. McNamara stated that the year 2013 would be the City’s 30th year of incorporation.  233 
 234 

8.3 Review and Approval of Proposed Capital Improvement Program 235 
Projects and Funding Sources for FY 2012/2013 236 

 237 
Ms. Vargas gave a PowerPoint presentation reviewing the process for developing the Five-238 
Year Capital Improvement Projects (“C.I.P.”). Ms. Vargas requested the commission review 239 
and approve the proposed Capital Improvement Projects (“C.I.P.”) for 2012/2013 and also 240 
approve the funding sources for the projects including those that require an application for 241 
East Bay Regional Park District Measure WW funding and authorizing the submittal of the 242 
application to the East Bay Regional Park District.  243 
 244 
Ms. Vargas stated the presentation is a result of the recommendations made by the 245 
Commission’s Finance Committee. Ms. Vargas asked for direction on projects and funding 246 
for just the first year of the Five-Year Capital Improvement Projects (“C.I.P.”). Ms. Vargas 247 
stated that staff would update the Five-Year Capital Improvement projects with the 248 
Commission’s recommendations and present back to the Commission in March. 249 
 250 
Ms. Vargas stated that synthetic turf field at Central Park is a $1.5 million project and the 251 
application must be submitted to Measure WW by March 31, 2012. Ms. Vargas stated if the 252 
commission approved the submittal of the application to Measure WW, Ms. McNamara 253 
would begin meeting with the field user groups to develop strategies, funding agreements, 254 
and fundraising strategies. Ms. Vargas stated that the Finance Committee was in favor of 255 
the project, but not in favor of allocating money for the project if there was not an adequate 256 
amount of funding from the user groups. Ms. Vargas stated the Finance Committee or the 257 
Commission would review the status of the funding for the project in November 2012.   258 
 259 
Commissioner Kenniston-Lee referred to Capital Improvement Projects (“C.I.P.”) 5432 and 260 
asked what percentage of the aggregate floor would be sealed; Ms. Vargas answered it 261 
would be the entire lobby area at the San Ramon community Center.  262 
 263 
Commissioner Mills motioned to accept recommended actions 1 – 3 as listed in the staff 264 
report; Commissioner Lopez seconded the motion. Student Commissioner Mehra voted in 265 
favor which passed 6 – 0. Commissioner Yancey was absent. 266 

 267 
8.4  Review and Approval of Directional Signage for Dougherty Valley 268 

Performing Arts and Aquatic Center 269 
 270 
Ms. McNamara updated and presented to the Commission the status of the directional 271 
signage on Bollinger Canyon Road and Albion Road. Ms. McNamara stated all of the 272 
directional signage in San Ramon follows all federal and state regulations. Ms. McNamara 273 
stated the first phase of the directional signage project is complete in which signage directs 274 
drivers from Bollinger Canyon onto Albion Road. Ms. McNamara stated the second phase of 275 



Page 7 of 9 
 

the project is the banner signs with reflectivity that will go on the street light poles located 276 
on Albion Road.  The banners would direct the drivers into one of three driveways on the 277 
Dougherty Valley High school campus depending on whether the location was the Aquatic 278 
Center or the Performing Arts Center. 279 
 280 
Commissioners had a discussion about the styles of the banner colors, layouts and font 281 
options presented by staff in the 5 options. 282 
 283 
 Commissioner Lopez, Commissioner Mills, Student Commissioner Mehra, Chair Ernest 284 
favored Banner #1; Commissioner Kenniston-Lee, Commissioner Meine, Commissioner 285 
Berner, Chair Ernest favored Banner #4 286 
 287 
Commission agreed unanimously not in favor of Banner #2, #3, #5 288 
 289 
Commissioner Mills moved to accept the style and color of Banner #1 blended with the 290 
same background of Banner # 4 excluding ‘Dougherty Valley’ from the facilities names.  291 
Commissioner Meine seconded the motion.  Student Commissioner Mehra voted in favor 292 
which passed 5 – 1. Commissioner Lopez opposed and Commissioner Yancey was absent.  293 

 294 
8.5  Library Advisory Committee Appointment 295 

 296 
Ms. Lucas recommended that the Commission recommend an appointment to serve as an 297 
alternate on the Library Advisory Committee with a term to expire January 2014. 298 
 299 
Chair Ernest asked Ms. Lucas for clarification on the appointment. Ms. Lucas responded 300 
that there is one alternate of two positions available and this is the second alternate. 301 
     302 
Ms. Lucas stated that the alternate positions are important to ensure there is a quorum, 303 
when a regular position is absent. Ms. Lucas stated that the alternate positions receive 304 
packets and are invited to attend all meetings. Ms. Lucas stated when there is an absence of 305 
a regular member, alternate one would be asked to serve and alternate two if one cannot 306 
serve. Ms. Lucas stated also that if there is a vacancy on the committee, the alternates are 307 
the first to move up to the regular position.  308 
 309 
Commissioner Meine recommended Ms. Rosso as the alternate to the Library Advisory 310 
Committee. Commissioner Berner seconded the motion. Student Commissioner Mehra 311 
voted in favor, which passed 6 – 0. Commissioner Yancey was absent. 312 
 313 
9.         STAFF REPORTS 314 
 315 
  9.1     Administration and Development Report 316 
 317 
No comments by the Commission 318 
 319 

9.2 Recreation Program and Community Services Report 320 
 321 



Page 8 of 9 
 

No comments by the Commission 322 
 323 
Ms. Lucas announced this meeting will be Cristi Toman’s last meeting as Commission 324 
Secretary. Ms. Lucas introduced Christina Buna to the Commission as the new Commission 325 
Secretary.  326 
 327 
 9.3 Maintenance and Operations Report 328 
 329 
No comments by the Commission 330 
 331 

9.4  Action Items 332 
 333 

No comments by the Commission 334 
 335 
 336 
10.       UPDATE ON CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 337 
 338 
Commissioner Lopez stated there were special presentations to the Special Olympics 339 
athletes and it was the first time that the City had entered athletes for this program area.  340 
 341 
 342 
11.       COMMITTEE REPORTS 343 
 344 

11.1 Upcoming Commission Committee Meetings to be held at the     345 
       San Ramon Community Center, 12501 Alcosta Blvd. 346 

 347 
Student Commissioner Mehra stated that the Teen Council held the Teen Government 348 
Shadow Day on December 9th with 40 participants. Student Commissioner Mehra stated 349 
Game Night would be January 27, 2012.  Student Commissioner Mehra stated that the Teen 350 
Council is currently working on a new Internet Safety Seminar. Student Commissioner 351 
Mehra stated that Teen Council was proposing using Cultural Growth Fund money to rent 352 
Dougherty Performing Arts Center for Multi-Cultural Night. Student Commissioner Mehra 353 
stated that the Teen Council launched a Teen Citizenship Award that was presented to the 354 
Program Committee. Student Commissioner Mehra stated there will be a showing of the 355 
movie “A Race to Nowhere” and discussion on March 23, 2012. Student Commissioner 356 
Mehra stated that Teen Council is still reviewing the tobacco ordinance.  357 
 358 
Commissioner Berner stated that the Planning Commission started the review of the Norris 359 
Canyon Road on/off ramps. Commissioner Berner stated the Planning Commission 360 
approved the expansion of the San Ramon Islamic Center. Commissioner Berner stated that 361 
the Planning Commission approved the possible location of an area flanked by San Ramon 362 
Valley Boulevard/Bollinger Canyon/I-680 for a homeless shelter in compliance with the 363 
California Zoning Ordinance.  364 
 365 
12.       COMMISSION MEMBER ITEMS 366 
 367 



Page 9 of 9 
 

Chair Ernest welcomed new Commissioner Kenniston-Lee. Chair Ernest appointed 368 
Commissioner Kenniston-Lee to the Facilities Committee, Finance Committee and as the 369 
alternate for the Library Advisory Committee.  370 
 371 
Commissioner Mills commended staff for a successful Holiday on the Farm.   372 
 373 
13.       ADJOURNMENT 374 
 375 
The meeting adjourned at 9:30 p.m. to a Regular Meeting on December 14, 2011. 376 
 377 
Submitted by Christina Buna, Commission Secretary 378 


